# **LODDON SHIRE COUNCIL**

# LODDON SHIRE COUNCIL - MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, SERPENTINE – TUESDAY 26 AUGUST 2014

The meeting commenced at 3.00pm with the Prayer.

# PresentIn AttendanceCr Gavan Holt (Mayor)Mr John McLinden, Chief Executive OfficerCr Colleen CondliffeMr Ian McLauchlan, Director OperationsCr Geoff CurnowMr Bryan McEwan, Director Economy and CommunityCr Cheryl McKinnonMrs Wendy Gladman, Director Community WellbeingCr Neil BeattieMrs Jude Holt , Director Corporate Services

#### **ORDER OF BUSINESS**

1.	APO	APOLOGIES		
2.	PRE	PREVIOUS MINUTES		
	2.1	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	3	
	2.2	REVIEW OF ACTION SHEET	4	
3.	cou	JNCILLORS' REPORTS		
	3.1	MAYORAL REPORT	5	
	3.2	COUNCILLORS' REPORT	8	
4.	DEC	ISION REPORTS	14	
	4.1	2013/14 FINANCIAL, STANDARD AND PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS IN PRINCIPLE REPO		
	4.2	VOLUNTEER POLICY FOR ADOPTION		
	4.3	FINANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 JULY 2014	18	
	4.4	REVIEW OF LEVELS OF AUTHORITY	20	
	4.5	BRIDGEWATER FLOOD MANAGEMENT PLAN	22	
	4.6	COMMUNITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN 2013-2015 YEAR 1 PROGRESS REPORT	24	
	4.7	LODDON PLANNING SCHEME AMENDENT C36	30	
	4.8	PETITION REGARDING GLENMORE COURT, BOORT	32	
	4.9	NORTH CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS REGIONAL LIBRARY CORPORATION AGREEMENT 2014-2018		
5.	INFO	DRMATION REPORTS	37	
	5.1	2014 REVALUATION FINAL REPORT		
	5.2	ROAD NETWORK DEFECT RECTIFICATION COMPLIANCE SUMMARY REPORT	40	
6.	CON	MPLIANCE REPORTS	42	
	6.1	DOCUMENTS FOR SIGNING AND SEALING	42	
	6.2	SECTION 86 COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERSHIP DETAILS – YANDO PUBLIC H		
7.	GEN	IERAL BUSINESS		
	7.1	PROPOSAL FOR AGED CARE FACILITY IN WEDDERBURN	45	
	7.2	LOCAL FACILITIES FOR LOCAL CLUBS PROGRAM 2014/15	46	
	7.3	EXHIBITION PERIOD FOR DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING	49	



	7.4	CENTENARY OF ANZAC ORGANISING COMMITTEE	52
8.	CON	IFIDENTIAL ITEMS	53
	8.1	REVIEW OF ACTION SHEET	53
	8.2	ALL WEATHER ROAD ACCESS UPGRADE REQUIREMENTS PLANNING PERMIT 3958 CAZ SEC D – OLD LOGAN BURKES FLAT ROAD	
	8.3	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2014	54

### 1. APOLOGIES

Nil

# 2. PREVIOUS MINUTES

#### 2.1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

### **SUMMARY**

Seeking approval of the unconfirmed minutes of the previous Council Forum and Meetings.

Author: John McLinden - Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 8: Compliance

File No: 02/01/001

Attachment: Nil

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council confirm:

- 1. the minutes of the Council Briefing of 22 July 2014
- 2. the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting of 22 July 2014
- 3. The minutes of the Special Council Meeting of 12 August 2014
- 4. The minutes of the Council Forum of 12 August 2014

#### **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Condliffe Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council confirm:

- 1. the minutes of the Council Briefing of 22 July 2014
- 2. the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting of 22 July 2014
- 3. The minutes of the Special Council Meeting of 12 August 2014
- 4. The minutes of the Council Forum of 12 August 2014

# 2.2 REVIEW OF ACTION SHEET

# **SUMMARY**

Approval of Action Sheet.

Author: John McLinden - Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 8: Compliance

File No: 02/01/001

Attachment: 2.2 Action Sheet

# **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council receive and note the Action Sheet.

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Beattie Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council receive and note the Action Sheet.

# 3. **COUNCILLORS' REPORTS**

#### 3.1 MAYORAL REPORT

### **SUMMARY**

Approval of the Mayoral Report.

Author: John McLinden, Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 1: Leadership

File No: 02/01/001

Attachment: Nil

### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council receive and note the Mayoral Report.

# **Municipal Association of Victoria**

**Section 86 Committees:** Donaldson Park Committee of Management, Wedderburn Community Centre Committee of Management, Wedderburn Engine Park Committee of Management, Wedderburn Mechanics Institute Hall Committee of Management, Wedderburn Tourism Inc.

#### **Audit Committee**

DATE	Activity
23/7/14	Attended meeting of Wedderburn Development Association. Also in attendance was Bryan McEwan, Director Economy and Community
26/7/14	Attended Wedderburn v Birchip winter sports program at Wedderburn
30/7/14	With Crs Beattie, Condliffe and Curnow, and Mr McLinden, attended a meeting with Mr Scott Turner, Nationals candidate for the seat of Ripon in the coming state election, in the company of Mr Peter Walsh, Member for Swan Hill
	With others mentioned above, attended the announcement on the Loddon River at Bridgewater of the funding of a Flood Study for Bridgewater by Minister Peter Walsh MLA
	Attended the announcement by Minister Walsh at the Hay Australia site at Derby of funding for the business to help it meet its VicRoads requirements for entry



	works off the Calder Hwy
31/7/14	With the CEO, met at Inglewood with the Loddon Mallee Regional Development Australia Committee. They were interested to get an overview from us of the situation in general across the Loddon Shire
	Took the RDA Committee on a visit to the Inglewood Blue Eucy Museum
2/8/14	Attended the Wedderburn v Wycheproof winter sports program at Wycheproof
4/8/14	Attended a meeting of the Loddon Campaspe Group of Councils at Wedderburn
4/8/14	Attended the Annual General Meeting of the Tarnagulla Senior Citizens Club which included a very informative discussion with the members of the issues facing the people of Tarnagulla
6/8/14	Met with Wendy Holland of "Community Vibe" and Allan Stobaus, Manager Community and Recreation, to discuss the scope of the feasibility study for the further progressing of the Donaldson Park Wedderburn Master Plan, specifically a new facilities building.
7/8/14	Attended with CEO Murray River Group of Councils meeting at Yarrawonga
8/8/14	Attended a Rural Council Victoria Executive Meeting in Melbourne
10/8/14	Attended the launch in Wedderburn of the Korong Historical Society's book "The Golden harvest – a History of Wedderburn" written by Geoff Arnott and Keith Ring. This detailed history is an outstanding effort and well worthy of the financial assistance it received from Loddon Shire
11/8/14	Attended the AGM of the Inglewood Sports Centre where I chaired the election of office bearers and discussed issues of concern to them
12/8/14	Chaired the Council Forum at Wedderburn where the main item of discussion on the agenda was the setting of the CEO's performance objectives for the 2014/15 year
12/8/14	Chaired special meeting of Council at Wedderburn to adopt the 2014/15 Budget
	Attended meeting of the Wedderburn Community Bank Steering Committee
13/8/14	Attended the send-off at Boort of Brian "Butch" McDonald after 47 years of service to the Loddon Shire and the Shire of Gordon (amalgamated into Loddon in 1995)
14/8/14	Attended with Wendy Gladman, Director Community Wellbeing, a meeting with the Executive of the Wedderburn Senior Citizens Club to have a general discussion about their future.
16/8/14	Attended the St Arnaud v Wedderburn winter sports program at Wedderburn

17/8/14	Attended function at Wedderburn Mechanics Institute Hall to celebrate the 150 <sup>th</sup> anniversary of the establishment of the Church of Christ in Wedderburn
20/8/14	Attended meeting of the Wedderburn Community Centre Committee of management
	Attended Loddon Shire Sports Awards night at Pyramid Hill. An outstanding night well attended and well organised by our staff. Max Walker was an excellent guest speaker and our champion sportsperson was rally driver Brendon Reeves.
21/8/14	Attended Council Internal Audit Committee meeting at Wedderburn
	Met with delegation from Wedderburn Lions Club to discuss their progress with looking at the possibility of establishing an aged care facility in Wedderburn
23/8/14	Attended Wedderburn v Charlton winter sports program at Charlton
25/8/14	Chaired Council's Centenary of Anzac Committee meeting at Serpentine
	Attended a Justice of the peace information session at Bendigo

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr Condliffe

That Council receive and note the Mayoral Report.

#### 3.2 COUNCILLORS' REPORT

#### **SUMMARY**

Approval of Councillors' Reports.

Author: John McLinden, Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 1: Leadership

File No: 02/01/001

Attachment: Nil

### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council receive and note the Councillors' Report.

#### **Cr Beattie**

# **Murray Darling Association**

25/7/14: Attended MDA meeting at Barham for Region 3

# **Rail Freight Alliance**

**Section 86 Committees:** Boort Aerodrome Committee of Management, Boort Development Committee Inc., Boort Memorial Hall Committee of Management, Boort Resource Information Centre Committee Inc., Boort Tourism Committee Inc., Korong Vale Mechanics Hall Committee of Management, Korong Vale Sports Centre Committee of Management, Little Lake Boort Management Committee Inc., Yando Public Hall Committee of Management

21/8/14: Chaired Boort Park AGM at Boort

## **Recreation Strategy Implementation Steering Committee**

20/8/14: Attended RSISC meeting at Serpentine

DATE	Activity
30/7/14	Attended meeting with Peter Walsh and Scott Turner at Bridgewater. Funding announcement for Hay Australia
4/8/14	Attended meeting with RDV at Boort Cereal Growers Co-op
4/8/14	Attended Boort Development Committee meeting at BRIC

12/8/14	Attended Council Forum at Wedderburn
13/8/14	Attended send-off for Butch McDonald at Boort Depot
20/8/14	Chaired Senior Citizens AGM at Boort
20/8/14	Attended Loddon Shire sports night at Pyramid Hill
23/8/14	Saturday sports day at Boort
26/8/14	Council meeting, Serpentine

#### **Cr Condliffe**

# **Calder Highway Improvement Committee**

**Section 86 Committees:** Bridgewater Memorial Hall Committee of Management, Bridgewater on Loddon Development Committee of Management, Campbells Forest Hall Committee of Management, Inglewood Community Sports Centre Committee of Management, Inglewood Riding Club, Inglewood Lions Community Elderly Persons Units Committee of Management, Inglewood Town Hall Committee of Management, Inglewood Reservoir Committee of Management

24/7/14: Campbells Forest Hall meeting

21/8/14: Bridgewater hall meeting

# **Australia Day Committee**

### **Loddon Youth Committee**

# **Healthy Minds Network**

20/8/14: Healthy Minds Network meeting in Wedderburn

DATE	Activity
25/7/14	Farewell to Ted Gregtrix for 22 years working with Rural Financial Counselling Service Bendigo
25/7/14	Calder Highway AGM meeting in Bendigo.

30/7/14	Meeting with Minister Peter Walsh and National Candidate Scott Turner in Bridgewater
30/7/14	Launch of the Flood Study Funding for Bridgewater
30/7/14	Official announcement of funding for Hay Australia for turning lanes of highway
5/8/14	Kooyoora Womens Network meeting in Bridgewater
11/8/14	Meeting in Bridgewater with community representative
10/8/14	Launch of the book on Wedderburn
11/8/14	Inglewood Sports Centre AGM, our Mayor Gavan Holt attended
12/8/14	Council Forum Wedderburn13/8/14
12/8/14	Inglewood Resource Centre meeting
13/8/14	TAC meeting Dingee
13/8/14	Rural Financial Counselling Service Bendigo
16/8/14	Newbridge Football Club sponsorship day about 4,000 people attended
18/8/14	Inglewood Alive meeting at fire station
21/8/14	Inglewood Senior Citizen meeting regarding the use of the building for the future
1/8/14	Attended the Inglewood Lions Club dinner
4/8/14	Attended Inglewood Senior Citizens AGM
19/8/14	Attended a BBQ for lan Rattallack coming from Perth all around Australia for cancer
20/8/14	Sports Gala Dinner held in Pyramid Hill – excellent night
21/8/14	Womens Health Loddon Mallee meeting, Bendigo
25/8/14	Powlett Hall AGM
	Powlett Recreation Reserve AGM

#### **Cr Curnow**

# **Central Murray Region Waste Management Group**

28/7/14: Final meeting of CMRWMG held at Wycheproof

**Section 86 Committees:** Eddington Community Centre Committee of Management, Kingower Development and Tourism Committee Inc.

# Municipal Emergency Management Plan Committee and Municipal Fire Prevention Committee

DATE	Activity
30/7/14	Meeting with National Party Candidate, Scott Turner, Ripon Electorate with Minister Walsh at Bridgewater Bowling Club
30/7/14	Announcement of State Government funding for the development of a Flood Management Plan by Minister Walsh at Bridgewater Caravan Park
30/7/14	Attended gathering at Hay Australia where Minister Walsh announced RDV funding to assist business development of their business
31/7/14	Attended the Loddon Mallee Regional Waste Resource Recovery Dinner held in Bendigo
1/8/14	Attended the first directors meeting of LMRWRRG held at Council offices Bendigo
4/8/14	Sat on interview panel to select the Acting EO for LMRWRRG in Bendigo
4/8/14	Attended meeting with Stan Krpan and two other members from Sustainability Victoria at Wedderburn office
10/8/14	Attended book launch at Wedderburn town hall with Mayor Holt and Cr Condliffe
12/8/14	Council Budget approval and Forum at Wedderburn
20/8/14	Attended Loddon Shire Sports Awards evening at Pyramid Hill
26/8/14	August meeting of Loddon Shire Council held at Serpentine

# **Cr McKinnon**

North Central Goldfields Regional Library		
25/7/14	GLC meeting in Bendigo	

**Section 86 Committees:** Dingee Progress Association, East Loddon Community Centre Committee of Management, Mitiamo Municipal Recreation Reserve Committee of Management, Pyramid Hill Memorial Hall Committee of Management, Pyramid Hill Swimming Pool Committee of Management, Serpentine Bowls and Tennis Pavilion and Reserve Committee of Management

# **Nature Tourism Advisory Team**

DATE	Activity
23/7/14	Calivil Recreation Reserve Committee of Management meeting
24/7/14	Neighbourhood House hosted "councillor, coffee and cake" chat morning – good attendance
28/7/14	CLLM "Advocating for agriculture" dinner in Kerang
6/8/14	Met at Senior Citizens with Wendy Gladman, Bryan McEwan and the Filipino community of Pyramid Hill to discuss their needs
8/8/14	Attended Pyramid Hill Senior Citizens AGM and lunch
12/8/14	Council Forum in Wedderburn followed by the Pyramid Hill Hall AGM
13/8/14	TAC in Dingee followed by meeting in Wedderburn with John McLinden and GLC CEO Chris Kelly
20/8/14	Gala Sports Night in Pyramid Hill – a very successful event – well done to all concerned
24/8/14	Judged Lions Club regional junior public speaking hosted by Pyramid Hill Lions Club
25/8/14	Met with DHS and Chair of Pyramid Hill Neighbourhood House to discuss a tenancy agreement for the units in Pyramid Hill

26/0/14	Council Maating in Corporting
26/8/14	Council Meeting in Serpentine

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr McKinnon Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council receive and note the Councillors' Report.

### 4. <u>DECISION REPORTS</u>

#### 4.1 2013/14 FINANCIAL, STANDARD AND PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS IN PRINCIPLE REPORT

#### **SUMMARY**

This report seeks "in principle" support from Council for the Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Author Deanne Caserta, Manager Financial Services

Council Plan ref: Core business 6: Financial stability

File no: 08/06/001

Attachment: Draft Financial Statements and Performance Statements

**Draft Standard Statements** 

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. Adopts the Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 as presented, "in principle"
- 2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to make any amendments to the Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 that may be requested by the Auditor General
- 3. Authorise the Mayor Cr Gavan Holt and one other Councillor to certify the audited Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

# **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Nil

#### **BACKGROUND**

Council's external auditors, Richmond, Sinnott and Delahunty, acting on behalf of the Victorian Auditor General's Office, visited Council's Wedderburn office on 28 and 29 July 2014 to finalise the audit of Council's Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

A condition of the Local Government Act is that Council cannot formally submit the Financial or Standard Statements (S. 131 (7)) or Performance Statements (S. 132 (6)) to the Minister without having passed a motion giving in principle support to those statements.

It is also a condition of the Local Government Act that Council authorise two Councillors to certify the Financial and Standard Statements after any modifications required by audit process (S. 131 (8)); and also that Council authorise two Councillors to certify the Performance Statement after any modifications required by the audit process (S. 132(7)).

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

The annual Financial Statements are presented in accordance with all relevant Australian Accounting Standards and consist of a Comprehensive Income Statement, a Balance Sheet, a Statement of Changes in Equity and a Statement of Cash Flows, along with detailed notes expanding upon each of these.

The Standard Statements consists of a Standard Income Statement, a Standard Balance Sheet, a Standard Cash Flow Statement and a Standard Capital Works Statement. The Standard Statements require a comparison of actual results to initial budget, and include an explanation where all material (greater than 10%) actual variances to budget occur.

The Performance Statement compares Council performance over the year for the Key Deliverables as identified in the 2013/14 Annual Budget.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The benefit to Council and the community is that accurate and regular financial reporting is being disclosed.

Provision of financial reports on at least a quarterly basis is a requirement of the Local Government Act.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

The provision of regular and accurate finance reports to Council minimises the risk of Council not delivering projects within the approved budget.

#### **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

There has been considerable consultation with Council managers in understanding their budget responsibilities and keeping within budgetary constraints.

Engagement with the community was undertaken during the submission period of the Budget, and regular reporting provides a mechanism of monitoring the financial outcomes of Council against that expectation.

#### **MOTION**

#### **Moved: Cr Beattie**

That Council:

#### Seconded: Cr Condliffe

- 1. Adopts the Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 as presented, "in principle"
- 2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to make any amendments to the Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 that may be requested by the Auditor General
- 3. Authorises the Mayor Cr Gavan Holt and one other Councillor to certify the audited Financial, Standard and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

#### 4.2 VOLUNTEER POLICY FOR ADOPTION

#### **SUMMARY**

This report is to provide the Volunteer Policy for adoption by Council.

Author Wendy Gladman, Director Community Wellbeing

Council Plan ref: Core business 2: Provision of wellbeing services

File no: 12/14/001

Attachment: Volunteer Policy

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council adopt the Volunteer Policy.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

The draft Volunteer Policy was provided to a Council briefing on Tuesday 22 July 2014 for consideration.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Community Care Common Standards accreditation undertaken by the Community Care Department identified a requirement to have an overarching volunteer policy to support the involvement of volunteers in the delivery of the service.

Currently volunteers support the Home and Community Care (HACC) Meals on Wheels program and the Loddon Visitor Information Centre. The policy has been written to encompass these departments and any future volunteer activity that develop in other areas within Council.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

The Volunteer Policy establishes how volunteers will be supported by Council and provides a framework in which volunteer services will operate. The policy will be supported by individual volunteer guidelines established by the operational departments who engage volunteers.

These guidelines align with Council and volunteer responsibilities as outlined in the policy.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

There are no additional costs associated with the adoption of this policy.

Volunteering benefits the Loddon community, Council and the volunteers. It is acknowledged that there are responsibilities that both the volunteer and Council are required to commit to in order to provide the best possible service to the Loddon community.

# **RISK ANALYSIS**

The adoption of the Volunteer Policy will eliminate the risks associated with the absence of a policy:

- meeting Community Care Common Standards accreditation requirement
- creates a clear position on Council and volunteer responsibilities when engaging volunteers

#### **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

This policy was developed in consultation with the Community Care and Tourism departments, the key areas within Council who currently engage volunteers.

The policy has also been presented to relevant internal sectors as required in Council's Strategic Document policy and procedure framework:

- Management and Leadership Team
- Management Executive Group
- Council briefing

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr McKinnon Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council adopt the Volunteer Policy.

#### 4.3 FINANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 JULY 2014

#### **SUMMARY**

This report provides Council with financial information for the period ending 31 July 2014.

Author Deanne Caserta, Manager Financial Services

Council Plan ref: Strategic enabler: Sound financial management protocols

File no: 08/06/001

Attachment: Finance Report for Period Ending 31 July 2014

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. receives and notes the 'Finance Report for the period ending 31 July 2014'
- 2. approves budget revisions included in the report for internal reporting purposes only
- 3. approves the supplementary valuations of rateable and non-rateable properties in respect of the 2014/15 financial year, as returned by the Shire Valuer, LG Valuations Pty Ltd, and endorses them being incorporated into the Register of Rateable and Non Rateable Properties and Rate Book for 2014/15.

#### PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Council is provided with Finance Reports on a monthly basis.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Finance Report for the period ended 31 July 2014 includes standard monthly information about budget variations, cash, investments, interest, debtors and creditors, and provides a comparison of year-to-date actual results to year-to-date budget (by dollars and percentage) and total revised budget (by percentage).

The information is in the format provided in the 2014/15 Budget, and includes operating results, capital expenditure and funding sources.

This Finance Report also includes supplementary valuations. Each year Council makes a number of additions, subtractions and alterations to the valuations contained in the annual rate book. These changes arise from various sources including:

- splitting of parcels into new rateable assessments
- development of vacant or unproductive land (urban and rural)
- consolidation of separate rateable assessments into one assessment
- re-assessment of property valuations arising from objections to the initial valuation
- additions and cancellations of licences (grazing and water frontages)
- change of use
- covenant on Title
- area amendment
- change of Australian Valuation Property Classification Code (AVPCC)
- supplementary valuation correction.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Nil.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The benefit to Council and the community is that accurate and regular financial reporting is being disclosed along with an accurate representation of property valuations is reflected in Council's rating system and the distribution of rate notices for the year 2014/15.

Provision of financial reports on at least a quarterly basis is a requirement of the Local Government Act.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

The provision of regular and accurate finance reports to Council minimises the risk of Council not delivering projects within the approved budget. Council's risk exposure is also increased if the rating system does not reflect the valuation changes associated with supplementary valuations as Council will not be aware of the changes, which can alter the rate revenue in the current year and in future rating years.

## **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

There has been considerable consultation internally with respective managers in understanding their budget responsibilities and keeping within budgetary constraints.

Consultation with ratepayers and authorities that act on behalf of ratepayers occurs when a change to a property is required or occurs by virtue of a sale.

External engagement with the community was undertaken during the submission period of the budget, and regular reporting provides a mechanism of monitoring the financial outcomes of Council against that expectation.

#### **MOTION**

#### **Moved: Cr Curnow**

That Council:

# Seconded: Cr Condliffe

- receives and notes the 'Finance Report for the period ending 31 July 2014' 1.
- 2. approves budget revisions included in the report for internal reporting purposes only
- 3. approves the supplementary valuations of rateable and non-rateable properties in respect of the 2014/15 financial year, as returned by the Shire Valuer, LG Valuations Pty Ltd, and endorses them being incorporated into the Register of Rateable and Non Rateable Properties and Rate Book for 2014/15.

#### 4.4 REVIEW OF LEVELS OF AUTHORITY

#### **SUMMARY**

This report seeks Council adoption of the revised Levels of Authority document.

Author Jude Holt, Director Corporate Services

Council Plan ref: Core business 8: Compliance

File no: 18/01/001

Attachment: Levels of Authority

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council adopts the revised Levels of Authority document.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Council considered the draft revised Levels of Authority document at its July 2014 Council Briefing.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Levels of Authority provides staff with parameters around their ability to undertake certain functions. These include:

- Purchasing and payment of goods, services, and works
- Contact with the media
- Employment related matters
- Authorisation of the write off of debtors
- Management of bank accounts
- Authorisation for Section 181 sales
- Authorisation of credit cards.

The document is updated annually to ensure that it remains relevant to Council's operations.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Changes to the current version include:

- removal of position of Management Accountant, as the position no longer exists
- addition of Planning/Local Laws Compliance Officer and Recreation Facilities Handyman as purchasing officers
- the section on "Write off debtors" has been amended to refer to the Provision for Doubtful Debts and Writing off Bad Debts Policy that was adopted by Council on 24 June 2014.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

There are no financial implications arising from the proposed changes to the document.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

Council's Risk Management Policy has been used to apply a risk based approach in assigning the various levels of authority in the document.

#### **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

Council staff was consulted to obtain feedback about any changes that were required to the current document.

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council adopts the revised Levels of Authority document.

#### 4.5 BRIDGEWATER FLOOD MANAGEMENT PLAN

#### **SUMMARY**

Seeking Council representation on a steering committee to guide the development of the Bridgewater Flood Management Plan.

Author John McLinden, Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 3: Planning for future needs

File no: 19/01/004

Attachment: Community Reference Group Committee Invitation

#### RECOMMENDATION

That Council nominate two councillors as members of a steering committee to guide the development of the Bridgewater Flood Management Plan.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Nil.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Bridgewater Flood Management Plan was announced on 30 July 2014.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

A community-led steering committee is being formed by the North Central Catchment Management Authority to guide the development of the Plan. The attached invitation provides more detail about the Plan and Draft Terms of Reference for the Committee.

Council has been invited to nominate a couple of councillors to sit on the steering committee, and also to nominate a staff member.

The staff member representative was requested to be someone who has a broad overview of the Council's strategic plans with regards to infrastructure, drainage and flood management, and have the authority to make commitments on behalf of Council within the scope of development and future execution of the Plan. Ian McLauchlan, Director Operations, will be the staff member representative on the committee.

Attached is an invitation and scope of reference for the steering committee members. The first meeting of the Bridgewater Flood Management Plan Steering Committee has been scheduled from 1-3pm on Thursday 4 August at the Bridgewater Bowling Club, with sandwiches beforehand from 12:30pm.

Following Council's decision, the North Central Catchment Management Authority will be advised who will be participating in the steering committee, and a signed agreement will be returned for each representative.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

No financial costs or benefits have been identified with Council representation on this committee, other than time spent on the committee.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

If Council does not participate on the steering committee, there would be a risk that its position will not be represented in the final Plan.

# **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

Nil.

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr McKinnon Seconded: Cr Beattie

That Council nominate councillors Condliffe and Curnow as members of a steering committee to guide the development of the Bridgewater Flood Management Plan.

#### 4.6 COMMUNITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN 2013-2015 YEAR 1 PROGRESS REPORT

#### **SUMMARY**

Provides Council with an update on the Year 1 progress of the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015

Author Jolie Middleton, Disability Inclusion Officer

Council Plan ref: Strategic enabler: Delivery of service excellence

File no: 12/12/004

Attachment: Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015, Action Plan

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015 progress report for Year 1.
- 2. Approve the recommended changes to the action plan for continuous improvement.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

The Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013 – 2015 was adopted by Council at its ordinary meeting held 25 February 2013.

#### **BACKGROUND**

Section 38 of the Victorian Disability Act 2006 sets a legislative requirement for all Local Governments to have a Disability Action Plan (Community Access and Inclusion Plan). The Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013 - 2015 is Loddon Shire Council's commitment to continue to reduce the barriers experienced by people with a disability.

It is a requirement of this plan that progress be evaluated annually to monitor goals and achievements as well as identify opportunities for continuous improvement.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Evaluation of Year 1 of the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015 demonstrates that initial steps have been achieved towards progressing the goals of the plan. When reviewing the action items it was evident much of the progress had been completed as part of normal practices and processes within Loddon Shire. This is a positive reflection upon the Shire; demonstrating that staff are incorporating access and inclusion principles within their work, which could perhaps be an indicator of the subtle changes in the culture of the organisation influenced by this plan and its predecessors.

Year 1 has seen positive changes towards reducing the barriers experienced by people with a disability and has built a good foundation for further achievements and proactive approaches to be implemented in Year 2 of the plan.

A detailed report of progress against each objective is outlined below.

#### Objective 1: Reducing barriers to persons with a disability accessing goods, services and facilities

Positive steps have been taken to reduce barriers to persons with a disability accessing goods, services and facilities however review of the Year 1 progress for this objective shows that further consideration and planning needs to be given to sustainable processes and practices that will increase the Shire's proactive approach to the objective.

Progress of each action for this objective is highlighted below:

**Actions 1.1 & 1.2:** Undertake audits on Loddon Shire Council's buildings and facilities for accessibility and subject to the audit outcomes, prioritise and action works identified (Subject to yearly budget).

Accessibility considerations have been built into the standard inspection template applied to all Shire buildings and facilities.

Physical inspection is scheduled to occur during 2014-2015 at which time it is envisaged that a number of required accessibility improvements projects shall be identified.

**Action 1.3:** All new Loddon Shire Council Capital Works projects are to have an access audit completed.

Two internal access audits and one external access audit were conducted during Year 1. Review of this action item indicates that the requirement of an access audit to be completed for all new capital projects poses significant budget implications that present as a barrier to this occurring.

It is recommended that this action item be changed to: "All new Loddon Shire Council Capital Works projects comply, so far as reasonably practicable, with the Disability Discrimination Act 1992".

It is recommended that this action indicator be changed to: "Evidence that planning and delivery for relevant capital projects has incorporated consideration and compliance with the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 can be demonstrated".

Plans for inclusion of an item to prompt a check for accessibility compliance in the internal project checklist have been identified.

**Action 1.4:** Continue to work with and build the skills of the Loddon Shire Council staff who have undertaken accessibility training.

It has been identified that Loddon Shire does not complete sufficient works requiring full access audits to facilitate staff maintaining formal accreditation.

It is recommended that this action indicator be changed to "Maintain/Improve number of staff trained". At present three staff members have completed disability access professional development sessions.

Action 1.5: Investigate potential funding opportunities for third party owned buildings to improve facilities.

Four community groups were supported to lodge funding applications for general building upgrades which also resulted in significantly improved access to these community facilities.

Support to identify alternative options to improve accessibility was also provided for instances where funding was not required or could not be sourced.

**Action 1.6:** When any publications, documents and media prepared by the Loddon Shire Council are reviewed, ensure they comply with accessibility quidelines.

During the implementation of Year 1 for this plan, it was identified that the Responsible Manager for this action item needed to be changed to Executive Assistant.

Council have adopted a style guide for all Council documents and publications. At the time of the Year 1 review of this plan, limited progress has been achieved. Further improvements, with the aim to review the style guide, are planned for Year 2 of the plan.

**Action 1.7:** Continue to advocate for improved and accessible public transport systems.

The Transport Connections Program finished in June 2013. Transport accessibility has been allocated as a standing agenda item for the Loddon Primary Care Partnership meetings. It is proposed to change the indicators of this action to better reflect the objective.

It is recommended to change the indicator to: "Number of opportunities to advocate for improved and accessible public transport systems engaged".

It is recommended that the Responsible Manager be changed to "Manager Community Planning" and the Partners be changed to "All Managers".

**Action 1.8:** Continue to provide and promote Loddon Shire Council's accessible website that features tools such as BrowseAloud.

Readspeaker, screen reader software, was purchased to replace the previous application, BrowseAloud. This new software has now been integrated into the new website. The new website is being developed to meet the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG 2.0).

Since its launch in April 2014, and as at the time of drafting this report, 16 June 2014, the ReadSpeaker software on the new website has received 102 hits.

#### Objective 2: Reducing barriers to persons with a disability obtaining and maintaining employment

Year 1 has seen a focus upon policy development and strategic changes, through the Equal Opportunity Policy and the actual implementation of the new Community Access and Inclusion Plan. Promoting awareness and understanding of these changes has provided the basis for initiatives that will support the organisation to work towards being an employer of choice for people with a disability.

Progress of each action for this objective is highlighted below:

**Action 2.1:** Implement new Equal Opportunity Act 2010 legislation to ensure Loddon Shire Council takes appropriate steps to prevent discrimination, in conjunction with prevention of sexual harassment and victimisation.

New Equal Opportunity Policy adopted in August 2013, in line with the Equal Opportunity Act 2010.

**Action 2.2:** Enhance work experience and placement opportunities for people experiencing disadvantage/disability.

Two work experience opportunities were coordinated through Wedderburn Secondary College within the workshop and parks & gardens areas. Further exploration of how to engage community members who may require further work experience in order to enhance their skills and gain employment is planned for Year 2. Initial discussions have commenced with the National Disability Recruitment Coordinator (NDRC) who will be able to form a partnership with Loddon Shire and support this process as well as enhance the organisations ability to employ people with a disability.

**Action 2.3:** Raise awareness of diversity, access and inclusion through the internal staff newsletter.

Regular presentations at staff meetings to raise awareness of diversity, access and inclusion have been conducted throughout Year 1. This approach to raising awareness has proved valuable with many staff members actively approaching the Disability Inclusion Officer for support or guidance in ensuring their work is accessible and inclusive for all members of the Loddon Shire community.

A brief Year 1 report on the CAIP progress is planned to be the first instalment for ongoing newsletter articles, continuing to be complimented by presentations/updates at staff meetings.

**Action 2.4:** Build on/enhance manager and staff knowledge and practical skills that support diversity within the workplace.

No training has been provided. The potential partnership with the National Disability Recruitment Coordinator (NDRC) will provide the opportunity for expert advice and training sessions on how to employ and support people with a disability in the workplace.

#### Objective 3: Promoting inclusion and participation in the community of persons with a disability

Significant steps have been taken in Year 1 towards achieving the actions of this objective which provide a good basis for further promotion of innovative ideas and concepts, that continue to enhance the inclusion and participation of people with a disability and in turn influence the broader community.

Progress of each action for this objective is highlighted below:

#### **Action 3.1.1:** Prepare an Accessible Accommodation Listing Guide.

An Accessible Accommodation Guide and Access Checklist for accommodation providers were developed with the support of a community reference group. Visits to accommodation providers and project completion are anticipated to be delivered by June 2014.

**Action 3.1.2:** Promote the Accessible Accommodation Listing Guide through the Loddon Visitor Information Centre and Loddon Shire Council Website.

Completion of the Accessible Accommodation Guide project will provide for this action to be achieved as planned in Year 2.

**Action 3.2:** Promote accessibility and inclusion through the Community Grants Program.

The Community Grants Program assessment criteria give higher priority consideration to applications that address access for all and consider the needs of people with a disability. In Year 1, two successful grant applications addressed increasing accessibility for all.

**Action 3.3:** Promote and encourage the use of the Companion Card and Victorian Carers Card throughout Loddon Shire.

Loddon Shire Council is affiliated with the Companion Card Program and the Victorian Carer Card Program. Management contracts for all Council owned ticketed facilities require that these programs be supported, with five places offering concession as part of the Carer Card Program.

In addition to those facilities owned by Council, two tourism businesses within the Loddon Shire promote the companion card through their business and two football clubs are registered affiliates with the Companion Card Program as part of the North-Central Football League.

Further awareness raising of these initiatives needs to be explored for Year 2 to increase the number of affiliated businesses and services within the Loddon Shire.

# Objective 4: Achieving tangible changes in attitudes and practices which discriminate against persons with a disability

Year 1 has seen many activities that support tangible changes in discriminatory attitudes and practices conducted as part of the normal roles of staff however limited deliberate actions were implemented which may indicate a lack of "disability confidence" for staff. Future focus will need to be given to enhancing staff awareness, understanding, attitudes and ability to grow existing practices and implement specific actions towards achieving this objective.

**Action 4.1:** Work with community groups to provide opportunities to up-skill and change attitudes and practices which discriminate against persons with a disability.

No formal sessions were held, however:

- Community Planning staff support several community groups, who are preparing plans
  for public open space upgrades, to consider the needs of people with a disability and
  proactively engage with local people with a disability when consulting with community
  on these projects.
- Recreation staff are involved in future planning with clubs, through which they support groups to consider disability and understand the accessibility requirements associated with any facility upgrades.
- The Accessible Accommodation Guide works with accommodation providers across the Shire to raise awareness of disability and change discriminatory attitudes and practices.

Planned training sessions need to be considered for Year 2 and attention given to identifying existing opportunities for disability awareness raising.

The Municipal Public Health & Wellbeing Plan gives further priority to this action and compliments it with an additional key project to "Work with Sporting groups to provide opportunities to up-skill and change attitudes and practices which discriminate against people with a disability".

Action 4.2: Promote the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015 to staff.

An all staff presentation was conducted in September 2013. It is intended that actions are put into 2014 Staff Development Reviews.

**Action 4.3:** Report on the implementation of the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2012-2015. As per this report.

Action 4.4: Ensure the voices of people with a disability are heard and considered in community engagement.

No community consultations were conducted where the number of people with a disability included was recorded. However, people with a disability were included in Council engagements through other means; three community members with a disability were involved as part of a reference group for the Accessible Accommodation Guide project and ten community requests regarding disability access were raised through the Operational Access Group meetings.

Further to this, staff are regularly contacting the Disability Inclusion Officer for advice and guidance to ensure their work considers the needs of people with a disability.

Exploration of Council's processes for recording of demographic details of community members in Council engagements may need to be explored in Year 2 in order to assess Council's engagement processes are adequately reaching people with a disability. Adding further to this, the Municipal Public Health & Wellbeing Plan compliments this action, highlighting the need for increased and more inclusive engagement with our community, with an additional key project to "Develop a community engagement framework and policy".

**Action 4.5:** Ensure all strategies and plans developed by the Loddon Shire Council consider access and inclusion principles as specified in 'Strategic Document Policy & Procedure Framework'.

All strategic documents now consider and make reference to the Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 as part of the 'Strategic Document Policy & Procedure Framework'. This provides a prompt for the responsible officer to consider access and inclusion principles in relation to the twenty fundamental human rights when developing strategies and plans.

The Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan is an example of a plan that specifically considers the principles with specific actions to address access and inclusion of people with a disability.

In Year 2, consideration may need to be given to staff understanding of the Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter and their ability to apply it when developing strategies and plans. The need for a more thorough prompting checklist may need to be explored to ensure staff are considering all diverse groups.

A further observation during Year 1 is that there would be benefit in introducing a steering group for the plan, with key responsible managers as members. Regular meetings of this group would provide a forum where the actions of the plan are continually discussed and gaps can be identified and responded to through the life of the plan versus on an annual basis. Such a forum would also provide opportunity to increase the "disability confidence" and understanding of the goals of the plan for responsible managers and identify cross-departmental partnering opportunities within the organisation to achieve the goals of the plan.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The continued priority given to this plan is crucial in influencing the broader Loddon Shire community to be inclusive of people with a disability.

Works that Loddon Shire Council does towards reducing the barriers experienced by people with a disability and supporting inclusion of all abilities within our community adds to the diverse wealth of our communities. In addition, this work also contributes towards the bigger picture of supporting our country in achieving its obligations under the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities.

The majority of actions outlined within the plan will be completed using existing resources and therefore do not require additional funding.

Those which shall require funding are proposed to be resourced via internal/external grants or via redistribution of existing budgets.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

It is a legislative requirement that Council act compatibly with the basic rights, freedoms and responsibilities set out in the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 (the Charter) and ensure that none of its functions, services or corporate framework discriminates on the grounds of disability in accordance with the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) 1992.

It is possible for Council to be sued if it does not adhere to the DDA or the Charter.

The Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015 specifically works to ensure that all areas of Council are being proactive in reducing the risks of discrimination and therefore adhere to the DDA and the Charter.

#### **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

All responsible managers were consulted with regard to the progress of their action items and submitted progress comments either as a written response or verbally to the Disability Inclusion Officer.

#### **MOTION**

#### Moved: Cr Beattie Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the Community Access and Inclusion Plan 2013-2015 progress report for Year 1.
- 2. Approve the recommended changes to the action plan for continuous improvement.

#### 4.7 LODDON PLANNING SCHEME AMENDENT C36

#### **SUMMARY**

Provides a summary of the report from the Independent Panel appointed to review Amendment C36 and recommends adoption of the amendment subject to changes recommended by the Panel.

Author Tyson Sutton, Manager Planning and Local Laws

Council Plan ref: Strategic Platform 2: Grow our population through appropriate development

File no: 13/01/003

Attachment: Panel Report

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council adopt Amendment C36 to the Loddon Planning Scheme subject to the changes recommended by the Independent Panel.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

At its March 2014 ordinary meeting Council considered submissions to Loddon Planning Scheme Amendment C36 (Rural Zones Review) and resolved to refer the amendment to an independent panel for review of requested changes to the proposal that it had resolved not to support.

#### **BACKGROUND**

Loddon Planning Scheme Amendment C36 was exhibited between 6 February 2014 and 6 March 2014 and received fourteen submissions, ten of which sought changes to the exhibited proposal. Council resolved that it did not support all of the requests for alterations and as a consequence referred the amendment to an independent panel for consideration.

A hearing by the appointed Planning Panel was conducted on 29 and 30 May 2014. They heard presentations from the Loddon Shire, Neil McHugh, Reginald Holt and Paul Bishop. In addition the Panel also considered all of written submissions previously received.

The report of the Independent Panel was received 8 Jul 2014 and contains five recommendations.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

The Independent Planning Panel appointed by the Minister to review Loddon Planning Scheme amendment C36 recommended that Loddon Planning Scheme Amendment C36 should be adopted subject to the following recommendations:

- 1. The property at 421 Wedderburn Wychitella Road in the Skinners Flat North Precinct should remain within the Farming Zone (Nash);
- 2. Lot 6 LP209162 in the Nine Mile South Road Precinct should remain within the Farming Zone (McHugh);
- 3. Part CA39 at Laanecoorie Reservoir should be rezoned to Public Use Zone (Goulburn-Murray Water depot);
- 4. CA40 (part), CA 42 (part) Section 9, Parish of Waanyarra and Lot 1 TP16953 at Laanecoorie Reservoir should be rezoned to Public Conservation and Resource Zone (Brownbill Reserve and eastern bank of Laanecoorie Reservoir); and
- 5. Modifications to the Local Planning Policy Framework and Schedules to the Rural Conservation Zone and Rural Activity Zone should be included, as shown in Appendices B to E of the attached panel report(refinement of wording of proposed changes to the Municipal Strategic Statement and the proposed Schedules to the Rural Activity Zone and Rural Conservation Zone to clarify intent).

Recommendations 1, 3 and 4 are consistent with Council's adopted position following consideration of submissions.

The recommendation of the Panel in relation to Mr. Neil McHugh's submission (recommendation 2) is contrary to the adopted position of Council. Mr McHugh's property is located in the Nine Mile South Road Precinct and is identified as Lot 6 LP209162. In relation to this precinct the Panel provided the following comments:

The Panel concurs that the Nine Mile South Road Precinct has considerable environmental value in providing a connection between different sections of the Wychitella Nature Conservation Reserve. However, it is also a significant agricultural area, therefore requiring a balance between its farming function and its ecological role.

Amendment C36 proposed to rezone part of Mr McHugh's land from Farming Zone to Rural Conservation Zone due to its function as a biolink between areas of the Wychitella Nature Conservation Reserve. The panel acknowledged that Mr McHugh's property is part of a larger farming enterprise and concluded that it would be impractical for his property to feature a mixture of zonings. They recommend the retention of Lot 6 LP209162 in the Farming Zone.

While the retention of Lot 6 LP209162 in the Farming Zone is not considered ideal it is a relatively small component of the Planning Scheme Amendment. The retention of this land in the Farming Zone will not significantly impact on achieving the overarching goals of the Rural Zones Review

The final recommendation of the Panel (recommendation 5) relates to the suggested wording changes to the Local Planning Policy Framework and the proposed schedules to the Rural Conservation Zone and the Rural Activity Zone. These are not considered to be significant changes to the proposed planning scheme provisions but aid in clearly expressing the intent of the proposed changes.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The proposal will benefit the community by providing a clear expression of appropriate locations for a variety and land uses and provide a range of zoned land to provide for the wider community's needs.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

Failure to provide appropriately zoned land throughout the Shire may result in lost development opportunities.

#### CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

Amendment C36 was exhibited between 6 February 2014 and 6 March 2014. Exhibition included:

- Publication in the Victorian Government Gazette
- Publication in the Bendigo Advertiser
- Publication in the Loddon Times
- Direct mail to prescribed ministers and surrounding landholders
- Copies of the Amendment and supporting documents being available at the Council Offices and on the Department of Planning and Community Development websites.

Seconded: Cr McKinnon

Submitters were given opportunity to present their position to an Independent Panel which conducted a hearing on 29 and 30 May 2014.

#### **MOTION**

#### **Moved: Cr Curnow**

That Council adopt Amendment C36 to the Loddon Planning Scheme subject to the changes recommended by the Independent Panel.

#### 4.8 PETITION REGARDING GLENMORE COURT, BOORT

#### **SUMMARY**

Presents Council with a petition received in relation to the re-erected dwelling at Lot 2, No. 4 Glenmore

Court, Boort.

Author David Turner, Municipal Building Surveyor

Council Plan ref: Core business 9: Regulation

File no: 13/06/001

Attachment: Letter from Mr K Linehan

Petition from identified residents in Glenmore Court, Boort

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the petition regarding building works occurring at No. 4 Glenmore Court, Boort.
- 2. Request that Officers investigate available options in respect to progressing building works at this site and subsequently report back to Council meeting at its next ordinary meeting.

#### PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This matter has been reported to Council on several occasions in the "Building Department Statutory Enforcement Activity" reports, and was discussed in more detail at Council's meeting on 25 February 2014.

#### **BACKGROUND**

Under the provisions of Section 212 of the Building Act 1993, Loddon Shire is responsible for the administration and enforcement of Parts 3, 4, 5, 7 and 8 of the Building Act 1993 and the Building Regulations 1994, within its municipal district.

In regards to this matter, the owners of the property have failed to complete the dwelling to a standard that is suitable to occupy and despite numerous conversations, no further progress has been made on the re-erected dwelling.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

A Building Permit was applied for by the owner builders on 3 November 2005.

Building Permit No 20059641 was issued for the re-erection of a weatherboard dwelling, and included an extension to the dwelling and the construction of a detached carport on 1 January 2006.

From commencement of works on the site, complaints have been received by Council from adjacent property owners about the style and nature of the building works.

An inspection was carried out on the site on 4 December 2006 and a "Direction Notice" and covering letter was issued to the owner directing some works to be undertaken on the dwelling as well as raising the issue of applicable time limits to complete approved works under the building permit.

An application to extend the original building permit along with payment of the associated fee was received by Council on 13 January 2007.

An extension to the original building permit was granted on 25 January 2007 with a covering letter emphasising the requirements to complete the project as soon as practically possible and to maintain the building site in a tidy and orderly way.

A further letter was sent to the owners in September 2007, reminding them of the applicable completion date and the possibility of a completely new building permit being required along with another security deposit should the works not be completed by the required date.

Because the works authorised by building permit, No 20059641, had not been completed by the required date another building permit application was received from the owners so they could complete the works under the authority of a valid building permit.

A new Building Permit, No 20080013, was issued on 14 March 2008 authorising the completion of the building works on the re-erected dwelling.

In June 2008 an application to extend the building permit, No 20080013, was received from the owner along with the payment of the associated fees.

In September 2008 a "Building Notice" was issued to the owner requesting them to show cause why they should not carry out building works to complete the dwelling within a period of six (6) months and obtain an occupancy permit or why a building order should not be served to them.

Because the works authorised by building permit number 20080013 had not been completed by the required date an application was received from the owners for a building permit to authorise the completion of building works on the weatherboard dwelling.

A new Building Permit, No 20080049, was issued on 19 November 2008 to authorise the completion of the building works on the re-erected dwelling. This permit excluded the large attached carport that was included on the original Building Permit.

Building Permit number 20080049 was extended on 4 June 2009 to allow the works to be undertaken up until 3 June 2010.

In March 2010, the Municipal Building Surveyor organised for a registered plumber to undertake the installation of spouting, down pipes and connection of the storm water on the dwelling as a means of progressing the works on the re-erected house. This work was paid for with money from the security deposit held by Council.

In April 2012 a letter was received from solicitors (acting for the owners) requesting copies of all building permits and other documents relating to the property at No 4 Glenmore Court, Boort because the owners were looking to sell the property.

During 2011 and 2012 the Municipal Building Surveyor was contacted by people looking to purchase the property and either modify and complete or just complete the dwelling. However complications with owner/builders selling uncompleted dwellings caused all possible purchasers to walk away from the property.

Copies of the Building Permits numbered 20059641, 20059641 amended, 20080013, 20080049, and 20080049 amended were all sent through to the solicitors along with copies of the direction notice and building notice.

During the progress of the building works approximately 26 inspections have been carried out and numerous discussions have occurred with the owner to advise them of their options.

#### COSTS/BENEFITS

Statutory Enforcement is a function of the Municipal Building Surveyor and is funded through this position. Benefits to the local community in performing enforcement duties include greater compliance with building regulations and improved public safety.

In the event that Council is able to progress this matter through the court system (subject to legal advice), there is a high possibility that a Magistrate will not award costs against the property owners and therefore Council will incur legal fees.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

Failure to adequately enforce compliance with the Building Act and associated regulations poses a number of risks, namely:

- Public safety
- Risk to Councils reputation as a regulatory authority within the community.

### **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

Discussions and consultations have been ongoing with the owners during the progress of the building works and every endeavour has been made to assist the owners in achieving completion of the building project.

#### **MOTION**

#### **Moved: Cr Beattie**

That Council:

# Seconded: Cr Condliffe

- 1. Receive and note the petition regarding building works occurring at No. 4 Glenmore Court,
- 2. Request that Officers investigate available options in respect to progressing building works at this site and subsequently report back to Council meeting at its next ordinary meeting.

#### 4.9 NORTH CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS REGIONAL LIBRARY CORPORATION AGREEMENT 2014-2018

#### **SUMMARY**

To seek Council approval to give notice of its intention to sign the revised North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation Agreement 2014 -2018.

Author John McLinden, Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 7: Education and life-long learning

File no: 20/02/001

Attachment: North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation Agreement 2014-2018

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. Advertise its intention to enter into the Regional Library Agreement 2014-2018, with the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation.
- 2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and seal the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation Agreement 2014-2018, should no submissions be received.

#### PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Nil.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Loddon Shire Council has been a member of the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation since its inception in 1994. The Library Corporation consists of members from City of Greater Bendigo, and the Shires of Loddon, Macedon Ranges and Mount Alexander. The Corporation provides library services to the member municipalities, and on a fee basis to Central Goldfields and Buloke Shires. The current library agreement expires on 4 March 2015.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

A new four year Library Agreement has now been prepared which supersedes the previous 3 year agreement. The current agreement outlines:

- the role of the Corporation
- its membership
- meeting procedures
- requirements for strategic planning, budgeting and financial contributions
- entry, exit and dissolution provisions

Section 197 of the *Local Government Act* requires Council's entering into a Regional Library Agreement, to advertise its intention. Any person has a right to make a submission and to be heard in respect to their submission.

The agreement is in line with current practice of the Library Corporation and represents good governance through the provision of an up to date agreement that specifies the responsibilities of all parties.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

Funding for Regional Library Corporation is provided for in the current budget.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

There are no risks identified with this proposal.

# **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

Councillor McKinnon and CEO, John McLinden are members of the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation Board.

#### **MOTION**

#### **Moved: Cr Curnow**

Seconded: Cr Condliffe

#### That Council:

- 1. Advertise its intention to enter into the Regional Library Agreement 2014-2018, with the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation.
- 2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and seal the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation Agreement 2014-2018, should no submissions be received.

# 5. <u>INFORMATION REPORTS</u>

## 5.1 2014 REVALUATION FINAL REPORT

## **SUMMARY**

This report provides Council with the final report on the 2014 revaluation of land and buildings in the Shire.

Author Jude Holt, Director Corporate Services

Council Plan ref: Core business 8: Compliance

File no: 09/01/001

Attachment: Nil

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council receives and notes the '2014 Revaluation Final Report'.

# **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Nil

## **BACKGROUND**

In accordance with Valuation Best Practice, Council undertakes a revaluation of all properties in the Shire every 2 years. The prescribed date for the next revaluation is 1 January 2014, and that valuation data will be used for the 2014/2015 budget.

Council undertakes its revaluation process via external contractor, and LG Valuations Pty. Ltd. (LG) is currently in the process of revaluing properties in the Shire.

# **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Valuation Best Practice outlines milestone dates for the return of information during the revaluation process. This is to ensure that Council has a Valuation Return by the final due date of 30 April, 2014. The milestone dates for the 2014 revaluation are:

Stage	Details	Due Date	Date Lodged with	Date Certified
			VGV	by VGV
Stage 1	Statistical Analysis	28 February 2013	13 February 2013	5 March 2013
Stage 2	Residential & Rural			
	Preliminary Valuations			
	- Rural	31 October 2013	7 August 2013	16 September 2013
	- Residential	31 October 2013	13 May 2013	11 June 2013
Stage 3A	Specialist Properties	31 August 2013	16 October 2013	18 December 2013
Stage 3B	Commercial & Industrial	31 January 2014	5 February 2014	14 March 2014
Stage 4	Residential & Rural			
	Final Valuations			
	- Rural	31 March 2014	28 March 2014	4 June 2014
	- Residential	31 March 2014	25 February 2014	4 April 2014
Stage 5	Valuation Return	30 April 2014	27 June 2014	28 July 2014

#### Stage 1:

Stage 1 includes preparation, planning and statistical analysis of the previous valuation against recent sales. It was due on 28 February 2013/

Stage 1 was lodged with the Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) on 13 February, and a 7A Certificate was received on 5 March 2013.

A 7A Certificate is authorisation of the revaluation stage by VGV and states that:

- The work was accompanied by the documentation and evidence required by the Valuer-General
- The work is in accordance with the standards required by the Valuer-General for the 2014 General Valuation and is considered satisfactory.

# Stage 2:

Stage 2 includes the largest body of work – Rural and Residential properties. This stage is the preliminary work required for those properties, where the majority of inspections and field data verification is completed. A final review of values for these properties occurs in Stage 4. Stage 2 was due on 31 October 2013.

Due to the size of the data, Stage 2 is normally lodged in two parts – Rural and Residential. Stage 2 Rural was lodged with VGV on 7 August 2013, and a 7A Certificate was received on 16 September 2013.

Stage 2 Residential was lodged with VGV on 13 May 2013, and a 7A Certificate was received on 11 June 2013.

## Stage 3A:

Stage 3A includes specialist properties that Council has nominated in the contract as being unusual, due to size or nature. It includes chicken farms, olive groves, piggeries, and other commercial properties. It was due on 31 August 2013.

Stage 3A was lodged with VGV on 16 October 2013, and a 7A Certificate was received on 18 December 2013.

#### Stage 3B:

Stage 3B is Commercial and Industrial properties. This stage was due on 31 January 2014.

Stage 3B was lodged with VGV on 5 February 2014, and a 7A Certificate was received on 14 March 2014.

## Stage 4:

Stage 4 is a review of Stage 2 data based on an analysis of subsequent sales. This stage is due on 31 March 2014.

Stage 4 Residential was lodged on 25 February 2014, and a 7A Certificate was received on 4 April 2014. Stage 4 Rural was lodged on 28 March 2014, and a 7A Certificate was received on 4 June 2014.

#### Stage 5:

Stage 5 is the return of the valuation to Council, and includes the valuer's final report. This stage is due on 30 April 2014.

Stage 5 would have ordinarily been lodged immediately following the receipt of Stage 4 Rural (which was 4 June 2014), but unfortunately an increase in the expectations around quality of data now required by the Valuer-General Victoria meant extra work was required before lodgement took place, and this caused a delay. Stage 5 was lodged on 27 June 2014.

The Certificate 7a for Stage 5, and therefore, final approval of Council's valuation data, was received on 28 July 2014.

# **Summary:**

Council's experience in the revaluation process for 2014 mirrored that of 2012. In short, everything progressed smoothly until the critical timeframes fell around Stage 4, when significant delays in certification of data occurred.

#### **Submission to Valuer-General Victoria**

Earlier in the year the Valuer-General Victoria invited submissions for the Valuation Best Practice Guidelines (VBPG) for the 2016 revaluation. Council submitted concerns regarding the new budget adoption date of 30 June annually from 2015 (which has been 31 August annually up to and including 2014) along with the current VBPG date for Stage 5 of 30 April, and requested that the dates for stages 3B, 4 and 5 be brought forward by one month to assist all councils in meeting legislative timeframes.

The VBPG has now been released and unfortunately there is no change to the milestone dates for 2016.

This will provide a significant challenge to Council in revaluation years where Council's position has always been to defer advertising the budget until Stage 5 certification has been received.

# **COSTS/BENEFITS**

There are no direct costs relating to this report.

The benefit of updating Council on the progress of the revaluation is that Council will be prepared for any delays in finalising the budget if it becomes apparent that milestone dates are not being met.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

There is a legislative risk that Council will not meet the new date for adopting the budget in a revaluation year unless the VBPG dates can be amended favourably or Stage 5 data is certified earlier than has been experienced in the past.

# **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

As well as gauging progress against the milestone dates, Council is able to the monitor the process by the following mechanisms:

- 1. Council is provided with a report from Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) when each stage is approved
- 2. Periodic meetings with LG Valuations Pty. Ltd. Under Council's contract, Council can ask for meetings with LG to discuss progress, queries, and any potential issues with return of data.

Also, LG's representative often calls into the office to touch base when he is working in the Wedderburn area.

#### **MOTION**

Moved: Cr McKinnon Seconded: Cr Beattie

That Council receives and notes the '2014 Revaluation Final Report'.

#### 5.2 ROAD NETWORK DEFECT RECTIFICATION COMPLIANCE SUMMARY REPORT

#### **SUMMARY**

Provides a summary of Loddon Shire's compliance against its Road Management Plan for the period 1April 2014 to 30 June 2014, being the fourth quarter of the 2013 - 2014 financial year.

Author Steven Phillips, Manager Works

Council Plan ref: Core business 5: Providing quality infrastructure

File no: 14/01/022

Attachment: Nil

#### RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the road network defect rectification compliance summary report.

## **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

This is the forth report for the 2013 - 2014 financial year presented to Council summarising road network defect rectification compliance against requirements specified within the Loddon Shire Road Management Plan.

## **BACKGROUND**

This report is produced quarterly and provides Council with evidence of the Loddon Shire's performance against requirements specified within the Loddon Shire Road Management Plan.

# **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

The following Defect Compliance Summary Report outlines Council's compliance against requirements specified within the Road Management Plan to the end of the most recent quarter. The report indicates compliance by percentage for each of Council's road patrol areas.

# **Date Imposed Works Action - Compliance Summary Report**

Date Range: 01/04/2014 to 30/06/2014

Number of Works Actions	Number Completed By Due Date	Number Completed After Due Date	Number Not Completed	Compliance %	District
15	14	1	0	93.3%	Boort
33	32	1	0	97.0%	Newbridge
78	76	2	0	97.4%	Pyramid Hill
41	34	7	0	82.9%	Wedderburn

#### **DEFINITIONS**

 $\label{lem:number} \textbf{Number of Works Actions - Within the date range, count the defects that were due for action}$ 

Number Completed by Due Date - From those defects in Column A to be rectified, how many were rectifies by the due date

Number Completed After Due Date - From those defects in Column A to be rectified, how many were rectified outside the due date

Number Not Completed - Column A - Column B - Column C

Compliance % - Column B Divided by Column A

During the fourth quarter of 2013 - 2014, 92.7% of all date imposed defects were completed before their due date. This is below the target of 100%. It is noted however that all defects have now been completed and there are no outstanding date imposed defects.

Achieving the target of 100% of date imposed defects repaired by the due date was made difficult due to the availability of specialist additional resources to assist the Works Department in rectifying the roadside vegetation defects specifically branches infringing into the vegetation clearance envelope.

## **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The benefits to the community in complying with the Road Management Plan are that it ensures a safe road network.

#### **RISK ANALYSIS**

Repairing 100 % of all date imposed defects before their due date limits Council's liability for any claims for damage made against Council. There have been no claims for damages against Loddon Shire as a result of a known defect this quarter.

## **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

No internal or external consultation is required in the formation of this report.

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr Beattie

That Council receive and note the road network defect rectification compliance summary report.

# 6. <u>COMPLIANCE REPORTS</u>

#### 6.1 DOCUMENTS FOR SIGNING AND SEALING

#### **SUMMARY**

This report provides Council with a list of documents signed and sealed during the month.

Author: John McLinden - Chief Executive Officer

Council Plan ref: Core business 8: Compliance

File No: 02/01/001

Attachment: Nil

# **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. receive and note the 'Document for Signing and Sealing' report
- 2. endorse the use of the seal on the documents listed

# **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Nil

# **BACKGROUND**

N/A

# **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Transfer of land from Loddon Shire Council to AS and DL Caserta – Volume 11375 Folio 831.

Deed between Loddon Shire Council and Telstra Corporation Limited in relation to renewal and variation of lease at Waits Hill off Coutts Street, Boort Victoria.

Contract G938-13 Provision of a Workcover Agent & Claims Administration Services on behalf of Central Goldfields, Gannawarra, Loddon, Buloke and Campaspe Shire Councils.

#### **MOTION**

#### Moved: Cr Condliffe Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council:

- 1. receive and note the 'Document for Signing and Sealing' report
- 2. endorse the use of the seal on the documents listed

#### 6.2 SECTION 86 COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERSHIP DETAILS – YANDO PUBLIC HALL

#### **SUMMARY**

This report seeks Council's approval of the membership of Yando Public Hall Section 86 Committee of Management.

Author Jude Holt, Director Corporate Services

Council Plan ref: Strategic Platform 1: Build a network of strong communities

File no: 02/01/041

Attachment: Nil

#### RECOMMENDATION

That Council appoints the names provided in this report as members of the Yando Public Hall Section 86 committee of management, effective immediately.

## **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Council approved the current list of committee members for Yando Public Hall on 23 September 2013.

## **BACKGROUND**

Current Section 86 committee instruments of delegations include Clause 3.6 which outlines the requirement for nomination and appointment of committee members, which is as follows:

#### **Members and Office Bearers of the Committee**

At the Annual General Meeting each year nominations shall be called for proposed members of the committee. The committee must then elect from its proposed members the following office bearers:

- President, who shall be Chairperson of the Committee
- Secretary
- Treasurer.

The full list of proposed members must be forwarded to Council for formal appointment at an Ordinary Meeting of Council, in accordance with section 86(2). Until this formal appointment by Council occurs, the previous committee members will continue to hold office.

Clause 3.3 Membership of the committee outlines Council's preferred composition of the committee specific to each delegation, and states that Council seeks to provide broad representation to the committees.

For community based committees, that is at least 6 community representatives.

For organisation based committees, each delegation has a list of organisations that are required to provide representatives for the committee.

#### **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

Yando Public Hall is a community based committees with representation of at least 6 community representatives. The following is a list of nominated representatives for the committee which meets the minimum requirement:

Name	Position
Craig Slatter	President
Ash Gawne	Vice President
Roslyn Gawne	Secretary/Treasurer

Bradley Haw	Committee Member
Doug Haw	Committee Member
Paul Haw	Committee Member
Kel Jeffrey	Committee Member
Ken Buchanan	Committee Member
Rose Buchanan	Committee Member
June Darker	Committee Member

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

The benefit of this report is that Council has an up to date and accurate record of current committee members to ensure that contact can be made, particularly where Council is requesting committees to comply with reporting requirements under the legislation.

## **RISK ANALYSIS**

Section 86 Committees act for and on behalf of Council which creates a risk for Council should they ever act outside their delegated authority.

Under Section 86(2) of the Act, "Council may appoint members to a special committee and may at any time remove a member from a special committee".

Council's appointment of committee members, not only satisfies the legislation, but also provides Council with the opportunity to sight the list of committee members before formally appointing them as they are the people that will be operating the committees, and in effect, acting for and on behalf of Council over the course of the year.

# **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

Nil

# **MOTION**

# Moved: Cr Beattie Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council appoints the names provided in this report as members of the Yando Public Hall Section 86 committee of management, effective immediately.

# 7. GENERAL BUSINESS

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr Condliffe

That the following items be treated as urgent business.

**Carried** 

## 7.1 PROPOSAL FOR AGED CARE FACILITY IN WEDDERBURN

# **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Condliffe Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council confirm its in-principle support to the provision of Council-owned land in Wilson Street, Wedderburn (Lot 3V and 7V on PP5845, and Lot 1 on TP555062), approx. area 6630 m<sup>2</sup>, for the establishment of an aged care facility, by an appropriate aged care provider.

#### 7.2 LOCAL FACILITIES FOR LOCAL CLUBS PROGRAM 2014/15

#### **SUMMARY**

Provides a summary of the state governments "Local Facilities for Local Clubs Program 2014/2015 and recommends projects that may be submitted to this program for funding consideration.

Author Allan Stobaus, Manager Community and Recreation

Council Plan ref: Strategic Platform 4: Make our towns liveable and memorable

File no: 16/02/003

Attachment: Local facilities for local clubs Program 2014/15: assessment and project description

summary.

#### **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council resolves to submit two applications to the "Local Facilities for Local Clubs Program 2014/15", these applications being the Wedderburn Bowls/Tennis redevelopment project and the Bridgewater netball/tennis court resurfacing project.

#### **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

Council have not previously discussed this matter.

## **BACKGROUND**

On 15 August 2014 The Hon Damian Drum, Minister for Sport and Recreation Victoria announced the availability of a new funding scheme "Local Facilities for Local Clubs Program 2014/15".

The purpose of this program is to encourage and recognise the role of community clubs and organisations to develop sport and recreation facilities.

The purpose of the program is to also acknowledge the current challenges faced by local government in bridging the gap in the development of new, and the redevelopment of existing, community sport and recreation infrastructure.

The critical elements of the funding guidelines and assessment criteria are as follows:

- Submissions to the program must be made by Council in collaboration with community groups.
- Applications must be submitted by 15 September 2015.
- Projects submitted for funding cannot be retrospective.
- Projects that are considered to be cyclic or routine maintenance will not be considered.
- Projects requesting funding must be ready to go and be able to be commenced by 15 November 2014.
- That projects requesting funding must demonstrate that they can be completed by May 2016.
- Submissions that demonstrate significant levels of in-kind and donated content will be considered favourably.
- In-kind contributions can be inclusive of design, project management, labour (skilled and unskilled), donated materials and use of machinery.
- A minimum of 25% of the project cost must come from community club contribution (cash/in-kind).

A summary of the funding available is as follows:

- One million dollars in total is available state wide.
- The maximum amount in total that any one council can apply for is \$50,000 for a maximum of 2 projects.



- An example of this funding mix would be the submission of 2 projects, with one requesting \$20,000 and another requesting \$30,000 (combined totalling \$50,000).
- This program will only provide matching funds to the community group in kind and or cash component.

The assessment criteria and weighting identified by the state for this program is as follows:

# Why do you want to do this project? = 20% Weighting

- Does the project respond to community needs and/or issues and address a gap in local facilities.
- Is the project supported by council and/or club business/strategic planning.

# How and who will deliver this project? = 60% Weighting

- Has the scope of the project been clearly identified and is a design in place that has been endorsed by all stakeholders.
- Is the project cost clearly identified and demonstrated by quotes or council estimates.
- Is a clear and achievable funding strategy in place that is inclusive of significant in-kind and cash contributions from the community club.
- Is a project management framework in place identifying each partners role in the delivery of the project.

# What will the project achieve? = 20%

- Increase (or in certain cases maintain) participation in sport and recreation.
- As a result of the project, what will be the additional participation and programming outcomes.
- Considers multi-use and improves the quality and range of sport and recreation opportunities.
- Addresses issues around safety, risk management, Universal Design principles and Environmentally Sustainable Design.

The above weighting criteria indicates that projects that are ready to go, incorporate significant community group involvement and are supported by planning processes, local government and peak bodies will be assessed favourably

## **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

In consideration of the quick turnaround time for funding and application guideline limitations, Council officers have identified 5 projects that may be eligible for consideration under the program. These projects were identified by reviewing individual club and recreation reserve master plans, in consideration of projects that were unsuccessful or not fully funded through Council's 2014/2015 community grants scheme, from direct feedback received from clubs and in consultation Regional Development Victoria.

Of these 5 projects Council are able to submit up to 2 applications. The projects identified for consideration are as follows:

- Bridgewater Recreation Reserve/Tennis Club: Resurfacing of tennis and netball courts with a new acrylic plexi-pave surface.
- Newbridge Recreation Reserve: Construction of an additional toilet and storage facility adjacent to the existing netball courts.
- Inglewood Sports Centre: Drainage works located between the netball and tennis courts.
- Pyramid Hill Netball Club: Construction of shelter adjacent the netball courts.
- Wedderburn Bowls/Tennis Club: Upgrade and remodelling of administration and kitchen area.

An assessment of these projects against the identified program assessment criteria has been undertaken; a summary of these assessments is attached.

This assessment process has identified 2 projects as being the strongest against the criteria. The two projects most likely to be supported are as follows:

- Wedderburn Bowls Tennis Club: Clubhouse upgrade (admin and kitchen areas).
- Bridgewater Tennis Club: Court re-surfacing project.

#### **COSTS/BENEFITS**

Funding provided through this program may provide clubs/organisations which otherwise may struggle to attract sufficient funding to undertake required infrastructure upgrades.

## **RISK ANALYSIS**

Facilitating the upgrade, improvement or renewal of existing community facilities is expected to contribute to the long term safety and functionality of these facilities.

## **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

A number of consultation and engagement processes have been undertaken when identifying and assessing possible projects, including:

- All Recreation Reserve Master Plans have been referred to.
- Council staff have liaised internally.
- Clubs with projects that were identified previously have been consulted with.
- Regional Development Victoria have been consulted in regard to project eligibility.

#### **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Beattie Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council resolves to submit two applications to the "Local Facilities for Local Clubs Program 2014/15", these applications being the Wedderburn Bowls/ Tennis redevelopment project and the Bridgewater netball/tennis court resurfacing project.

# 7.3 EXHIBITION PERIOD FOR DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

# **SUMMARY**

Provides Council with a summary of the Victorian governments draft Memorandum of Understanding in respect to principals for collaboration and priority focus areas for climate change adaption.

Author Ian McLauchlan, Director Operations

Council Plan ref: Strategic enabler: Sustainability focus to asset management

File no: 17/01/001

Attachment: Draft Climate Change Adaption Memorandum of Understanding

## **RECOMMENDATION**

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the Victorian governments draft Climate Change Adaption Memorandum of Understanding.
- 2. Respond to the Minister for Environment and Climate Change indicating general support of the Memorandum of Understanding contents.

# **PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION**

In February 2006 Council accepted an invitation from the then Minister for Environment, the Hon John Thwaites, to join with the state government in committing to the Victorian Local Sustainability Accord.

The Accord was a landmark partnership agreement between the Victorian State Government and local governments on environmental sustainability. It was developed over a 12 month period by representatives of five peak local government bodies, including the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), the Victorian Local Governance Association (VLGA) and the Department of Sustainability & Environment (DSE).

The Loddon Shire Council agreed to join the Victorian Local Sustainability Accord and committed to the principles of the Accord by working with the State Government to:

- build a common agenda through dialogue and partnerships on key policies, legislative proposals and significant programs;
- establish shared local goals and priorities;
- develop joint approaches to long term strategic resource allocation and funding;
- pursue alignment and co-operation in the service delivery of relevant environmental sustainability initiatives; and
- improve procedures for regular, effective evaluation and review.

In joining the Accord, Council also committed to an implementation process in conjunction with the Department of Sustainability & Environment (DSE), which included:

- the development of a Local Environmental Sustainability Priority Statement for the municipality;
- the exploration of regional approaches to local sustainability priorities and issues;
- the development of an implementation strategy for the Priority Statement; and
- the development of a process for the strategic delivery of State and local resources to progress local implementation actions.

#### **BACKGROUND**

Victorian local governments are directly involved in many successful programs addressing environmental challenges, including greenhouse gas emissions, water quality and resource management, waste management and procurement policies.

The Victorian Adaptation and Sustainability Partnership (VAS Partnership) is an established partnership between the State Government and Victoria's 79 councils and is a continuation of the Victorian council's commitment to the sustainability Accord.

The VAS Partnership helps the State Government and local governments work together on climate adaptation and environmental sustainability issues that affect all Victorians. It builds on the achievements of the former Victorian Local Sustainability Accord by raising the priority of climate change and sustainability within councils, supporting councils to work with their communities to become more resilient to climate change, become more sustainable and prompting on-ground local action.

Minister for Environment and Climate Change Ryan Smith has appointed a ministerial advisory committee to oversee the Victorian Adaptation and Sustainability Partnership.

The committee consists of ten members including:

- one nominated councillor or senior local government staff member from each of the local government partners (Municipal Association of Victoria, Victorian Local Governance Association and Local Government Professionals);
- four senior local government representatives drawn from open nominations; and
- three ex officio members: the Parliamentary Secretary for Environment, the DEPI Secretary (or his or her nominee) and the DTPLI Secretary (or his or her nominee).

The role of the ministerial advisory committee is to provide advice to the Minister for Environment and Climate Change and to act as a conduit between State and local government on climate adaptation and environmental sustainability issues. Specifically, the committee:

- oversees the implementation and evaluation of the VAS Partnership;
- acts as a conduit and facilitates discussion between State and local government;
- responds to requests from the minister to provide feedback on policy development and issue resolution, representing the varied views of local governments and their communities;
- provides advice to the minister on emerging local government issues regarding adaptation and sustainability; and
- attends program-related events and forums.

As part of their role, the VAS Partnership Committee have initiated development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between the state and local government. The MoU puts in place a set of agreed principals to guide state and local government work in climate change adaption as well as identification of priority areas of climate change adaption focus.

Principals identified within the MoU include:

- Mutual Respect: State and local government maintain mutual respect for each other's obligations, operational autonomy and priorities.
- Mainstreaming: Climate change adaption should be embedded into existing programs or policies to be effective and sustainable.
- Vulnerability: Consideration of socioeconomic and geographic factors rendering particular communities more or less vulnerable to climate change.
- Uncertainty: Accept that climate change science is not absolute, however progress needs to be made on best available information.
- Adaptive Management: Adaptive practices should be supported and encouraged.
- Future Focus: Maintain an intergenerational view in respect to future consequences of current decisions.
- Informed Decision Making: Use best practice and current knowledge combined with local knowledge and input in making decisions.



- Integrated Decision Making: Integrate across various levels of state and local government to avoid duplication and achieve optimum efficiency and productivity.
- Community Empowerment: Engage with, and empower, local communities to guide their future in respect to climate change adaption.

Priority areas for future works also identified within the MoU to which the focus of the above principals will be applied include:

- Sea level rise.
- Agricultural productivity and economic development.
- Community empowerment.
- Resilience to extreme weather events.
- Vulnerable Communities.

The MoU provides that the parties shall commit to the further development and implementation of shared adaption responsibilities across the above key areas of focus. A specific output from the VAS partnership committee shall be the development of a working plan to address each of the key areas and inform the development of the Victorian Climate Change Adaption Plan being prepared by the state government by the end of 2016.

The term of the MoU is ongoing, with a review of priority areas to occur at the end of 2016.

## **ISSUES/DISCUSSION**

The MoU identifies some broad principals and areas of focus for the VAS Partnership to develop work plans with the aim of informing the pending review of the Victorian Climate Change Adaption plan. Roles and responsibilities as set out in the current Victorian Climate Change Adaption Plan in respect of local government include:

- Administer relevant state and territory and / or Commonwealth legislation to promote adaptation as required including the application of relevant codes, such as the Building Code of Australia;
- Manage risks and impacts to public assets owned and managed by local governments;
- Manage risks and impacts to local government service delivery;
- Collaborate across councils and with state and territory governments to manage risks of regional climate change impacts;
- Ensure policies and regulations under their jurisdiction, including local planning and development regulations, incorporate climate change considerations and are consistent with state and commonwealth government adaptation approaches;
- Facilitate building resilience and adaptive capacity in the local community, including through providing information about relevant climate change risks;
- Work in partnership with the community, locally based and relevant NGOs, business and other key stakeholders to manage the risks and impacts associated with climate change; and
- Contribute appropriate resources to prepare, prevent, respond and recover from detrimental climatic impacts.

The above responsibilities and actions are considered to either be reflected in current Council operations or identified within Councils Environmental Sustainability Strategy (ESS) as potential areas for further investigation or improvement.

The MoU is not legally binding and does not override any responsibilities or obligations as set out in legislation or existing policies. The MoU sets out some broad principals and areas of focus for climate change adaption. It is considered that the principals listed within the MoU are consistent with Councils ESS which was adopted in October 2014.

Similarly a number of the priority areas identified have also been reflected within Councils ESS.

# **COSTS/BENEFITS**

It is not expected that support of the Draft MoU shall impose any cost obligations upon Council.

At this point in time it is not expected that any direct benefits shall be provided by supporting the MoU other than the establishment of broad principals and areas of potential climate change focus. It is however likely that the information developed by the VAS partnership shall directly inform the review of the state governments climate change adaption plan, which may subsequently result in funding or collaborative opportunities between various levels of government.

# **RISK ANALYSIS**

Given the MoU is not legally binding not explicitly imposes any obligations or responsibilities upon local government that are not already reflected through existing programs, policies, strategies or operations; it is considered that supporting the MoU as presented poses minimal risk to Council.

# **CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT**

The Minister for Environment and Climate Change has called for submissions in response to the draft MoU prepared by the VAS Partnership ministerial advisory committee.

In addition to development by the committee, mayors and CEO's from 32 councils across the state were invited to discussions in which they provided insight into the high priority climate change issues faced by local government across a diverse range of municipal profiles. This input was then also fed into the development of the MoU.

#### **MOTION**

#### Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the Victorian governments draft Climate Change Adaption Memorandum of Understanding.
- 2. Respond to the Minister for Environment and Climate Change indicating general support of the Memorandum of Understanding contents.

**Carried** 

# 7.4 CENTENARY OF ANZAC ORGANISING COMMITTEE

The Mayor indicated that the Committee discussed concerns that major upgrade of the hall at Janiember Park, Serpentine will be underway at the time of the proposed 24 April 2015 celebration. The CEO advised that the project is not fully funded at this time.

# 8. **CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS**

Closing of Meeting to the Public

## **RECOMMENDATION**

That the meeting be closed to the public.

## **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Beattie Seconded: Cr McKinnon

That the meeting be closed to the public at 5.15pm

Carried

#### 8.1 REVIEW OF ACTION SHEET

## **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Curnow Seconded: Cr Condliffe

That Council receive and note the Action Sheet.

**Carried** 

# 8.2 ALL WEATHER ROAD ACCESS UPGRADE REQUIREMENTS PLANNING PERMIT 3958 CA21B SEC D – OLD LOGAN BURKES FLAT ROAD

## **MOTION**

Moved: Cr Condliffe Seconded: Cr Curnow

That Council:

- 1. Receive and note the property Owners request for consideration of a compromise position in respect to the requirement to fund road upgrade works associated with the conditions specified within planning permit 3958.
- 2. Receive and note Officers recommendations regarding the minimum infrastructure standard that should be applied in order to recognise the specified section of the Old Logan Burkes Flat Road as an all-weather access road i.e. Rural Gravel Access Road.
- 3. Provide a response to the Owner, indicating that the initial cost of any road upgrade works required to satisfy Clause 35.07-2 of the Loddon Planning Scheme, is the sole responsibility of the developer and as such, Council is unwilling to contribute to the cost of upgrading the Old Logan Burkes Flat Road or modify the specified scope of upgrade works required.

# 8.3 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2014

MOTION	
Moved: Cr Condliffe	Seconded: Cr Beattie
That Council approve the work objectives for the C	Thief Executive Officer for 2014-15 as attached.
	Carried
MOTION	
Moved: Cr Curnow	Seconded: Cr McKinnon
That the meeting be re-opened to the public at 5.46	öpm
	Carried
NEXT MEETING	
The next Ordinary Meeting of Council will be held o	n 23 September at Serpentine commencing at 3pm
There being no further business the meeting was clo	osed at 5.47pm.
Confirmed thisday ofday	2014